
REGULAR MEETING  
AGENDA 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2015, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,  

Guilin__, Anderson__, Wall____. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Presentation regarding the U.S. Supreme Court decision of Reed v. Town of 
Gilbert, 135 S.Ct. 2218 (U.S. 2015) and the potential implications of the 
Reed Case. 
 

b. Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 
People's Mortgage as the Business of the Month. 

 
7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 

part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the 
public objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
a. Approval of the 2015 Groundwater Savings Agreement with Pinal County 

Water Augmentation Authority and Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage 
District. 

 
b. Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal 

County for election services.  
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



c. Approval of the donation of four Panasonic Tough Book computers to the 
City of Globe Fire Department. 
 

d. Approval of the resignation of Billie Jo Garcia from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 
 

e. Approval of the resignation of Bruce Fenstermaker from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission 
 

f. Approval of the September 8, and September 14, 2015 Council minutes. 
 

g. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
i. July 22 and September 16, 2015 Historic District Advisory Commission 

minutes. 
ii. July 15, 2015 Library Advisory Board minutes.  
iii. August 27, 2015 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board minutes 

 
8.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

a. Ordinance No. 640-15:  Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of an AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .36 ACRES, FROM NEIGHBORHOOD 
MULTIPLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT TO HIGHWAY BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT (APN 200-47-001B). (First reading 
October 5, 2015) 

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of approving Task Order Nos. 7, 9 and 10, 
with Water Works Engineers for design of upgrades to the booster pump 
station, northern area pressure zones within Florence Gardens and 
replacement of the booster pumps at Well No. 5, for a total cost not to 
exceed $261,575. 
 

10. MANAGER’S REPORT 

11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
12. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 

 
13. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a. For the purpose of discussion of the public body in accordance with A.R.S. 
§38-431.03 (A)(1) to review the applications received for the position of 
Town Manager and discuss candidates to be interviewed.  

 
b. For the purpose of discussion of the public body in accordance with A.R.S. 

38-431.03(A)(3) and (A)(4) for legal advice and to consider the Town’s 
position and instruct its attorneys in regard to pending litigation in 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



Maricopa County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, 
Inc. CV 2015-0001325. 

 
14. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON OCTOBER 15, 2015, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   2015 Groundwater Saving Agreement 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  2015 Groundwater Savings Agreement                                            Meeting Date:  October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of the 2015 Groundwater Saving Agreement with Pinal County Water 
Augmentation Authority (PCWAA) and Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District, 
(CAIDD). 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year, the Town enters into a Groundwater Savings Agreement with the Pinal 
County Water Augmentation Authority (PCWAA) and a drainage district.  This year, the 
Town will contract with Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District. 

The Town is allocated 2048 acre feet of Central Arizona Project (CAP) water annually 
through a subcontract with Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD), but 
does not actually take physical delivery of the water.  The agreement allows the 
PCWAA to purchase the water in the Town’s name and CAIDD to actually take physical 
delivery of the water. 

In return, the Town will accrue stored water credits in its long-term storage account with 
the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR).  These credits allow the Town to 
avoid paying replenishment fees to the Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment 
District, which the Town has never done. 

The CAIDD pays for the CAP water in lieu of pumped groundwater within its District in 
the Pinal Active Management Area.  Then PCWAA pays for the storage permit and the 
implementation of the agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town will pay $78 per acre foot for the water, but will receive long-term storage 
credits.  Valuation of similar water rights is at least $400 per acre-foot.   
 



Subject:  2015 Groundwater Savings Agreement                                            Meeting Date:  October 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends entering into a Groundwater Savings Agreement with the PCWAA 
and the CAIDD.  The Town Attorney has reviewed and approved the Agreement as to 
form. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2015 Groundwater Saving Agreement 
 



GROUNDWATER SAVINGS  
PROJECT AGREEMENT 

 
PARTIES: 

This Agreement is made this             day of                                                   , 2015, by and between 

the Pinal County Water Augmentation Authority (the “Authority”), the Town of Florence (the 

"Town"), and Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District (the "District”), to create and 

implement a Groundwater Savings Project (“GWSP”). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Town has a 2,048 acre-feet per year allocation of CAP water pursuant to a 

subcontract with the CAWCD, which is presently not being directly used, but desires to recharge 

at least the minimum amount necessary to meet its M&I requirements. 

B. The District desires to use a portion of the Town’s CAP allocation for agricultural 

irrigation as an affordable alternative to pumping ground water. 

C. The Authority is charged with guiding and coordinating the development of 

water augmentation and water conservation efforts within the Pinal Active Management Area 

(AMA) in conjunction with local governmental entities and the Arizona Department of Water 

Resources. 

D. The parties desire to develop and participate in a Groundwater Savings Project 

as a method of facilitating an affordable interim use of a portion of the Town’s CAP allocation 

thereby preserving the ground water underlying the Pinal AMA, according to the terms and 

conditions set forth herein. 



COVENANTS: 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Intergovernmental Agreement. This Intergovernmental Agreement 

(“Agreement”) is entered into pursuant to the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes §11-951, 

et seq. 

2. Definitions. 

2.1 "ADWR” shall mean the Arizona Department of Water Resources. 

2.2 "BOR" shall mean the Bureau of Reclamation of the United States 

Department of the Interior. 

2.3 "CAP Water" shall mean Central Arizona Project water that is part of the 

Town's allocation or other Central Arizona Project water which the Town has the legal right to 

use. 

2.4 "CAWCD" shall mean the Central Arizona Water Conservation District. 

2.5 "Facility Permit" shall mean permit issued by ADWR to the District and 

any amendments or supplements thereto. 

2.6 “GWSP" shall mean the Ground Water Savings Project contemplated by 

this Agreement, whereby CAP water purchased by Town is delivered to the District for its direct 

use in order to preserve the Pinal AMA groundwater. 

2.7 “GWS Water" shall mean CAP water purchased by the Authority on 

behalf of the Town and Delivered to the District under this Agreement. 

2.8 "Pumped Water" shall mean water withdrawn from any of the wells 

within the District service area as shown on Exhibit "A". 



 
 3 

2.9 "Storage Permit" shall mean the permit issued by ADWR to the Authority 

for storage of in lieu water pursuant to the Facility Permit issued to the District. 

2.10 "Stored Water Credits" shall mean those credits accrued by the Town 

pursuant to this Agreement and Arizona Revised Statutes §45-852.01. 

2.11  "Water Delivery System" shall mean the District turnout facilities at the 

CAP aqueduct used to deliver water to the District canals, including existing and future turnouts 

and pumps. 

3. Delivery of GWS Water.  Pursuant to the Storage Permit, and in quantities and 

on delivery dates scheduled by the District, up to two thousand forty eight acre feet (2,048 af) 

of CAP Water shall be purchased in the name of the Town during the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise agreed, and its delivery shall be directed to the District. The District shall take 

delivery of the GWS Water at the delivery points agreed upon by the District and CAWCD.  The 

parties shall pay the charges and fees for the purchase of the GWS Water in the manner set 

forth below.  The District shall use such water for agricultural irrigation in lieu of pumped water 

within the District’s service area within the Pinal AMA. The District shall use the GWS Water 

delivered under the Agreement in lieu of Pumped Water on a gallon-for-gallon substitute basis. 

The Town shall be entitled under this Agreement and Arizona law to the Stored Water Credits 

to the extent of GWS Water used by the District. 

4. Individual and Shared Expenses. During the term of this Agreement the parties 

shall bear responsibility for individual and shared expenses as follows: 

4.1 District Expenses.   

4.1.1 Pay all the expenses of the delivery after receipt of GWS Water 



 
 4 

within the District beyond the Water Delivery System. 

4.1.2 Absorb the District’s legal and internal operating and 

administrative fees and expenses, relating to the receipt and use of GWS Water under this 

Agreement, including legal fees incurred by the District in the development and 

implementation of this Agreement. 

4.2 Town Expenses. 

4.2.1 Pay all of the M&I capital charges portion of the annual water rate  

charged by CAWCD for GWS Water under this Agreement.  

4.2.2 Absorb its legal and internal operating and administrative fees 

and expenses relating to the development and implementation of this Agreement. 

4.3 Authority Expenses. 

4.3.1 Authority shall pay any and all costs for the Authority to obtain a 

Storage Permit. 

4.3.2 Absorb its legal and internal operating and administrative fees 

and expenses relating to the development and implementation of this Agreement. 

4.4 Shared Expenses. Based upon the annual M&I Water Rate charged by 

CAWCD, less the capital charges to be paid by the Town, the parties shall pay as follows for the 

GWS Water used by the District:   

4.4.1  The District shall pay Forty-nine and no/100 ($49.00) Dollars per 

acre foot. 

4.4.2  The Town shall pay Seventy-eight and no/100 ($78.00) Dollars per 

acre foot (based on Central Arizona Project Final 2015-2016 Rate Schedule, June 5, 2014). 



 
 5 

4.4.3  The Authority shall pay the remaining balance of Thirty and no/100 

($30.00) Dollars per acre-foot, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, as well as 

receipt of Legislative funding as implemented by the Arizona Department of Water Resources. 

5. GWS Water Delivery Point and Measurement. 

5.1 GWS Water furnished to the District pursuant to this Agreement shall be 

delivered to the District at its Water Delivery System. 

5.2 All water delivered to the Water Delivery System shall be measured using 

the CAWCD water measuring equipment on site.  The results of such measurements shall be 

provided to the Authority and the Town. 

6. Ordering and Billing. 

6.1 The Town shall schedule GWS Water deliveries from CAWCD in 

accordance with CAWCD's procedures and at the same time shall notify and deliver to the 

Authority and the District a copy of the Town’s schedule. 

6.2 The Town shall prepay charges for said GWS Water based on the 

schedule of deliveries and otherwise comply with the CAWCD rules and regulations concerning 

payment and security of payment for said water. 

6.3 The District will attempt to take delivery and use not more than the 

Town’s annual allocation of CAP water. 

6.4 The parties acknowledge the interruptible nature of the CAP water supply 

to be furnished under this Agreement.  No party shall be liable to the other(s) for any damages 

resulting from curtailment, interruptions, discontinuances or reductions in supply or 

undeliverable water which are beyond the control of the party. 



 
 6 

7. Payment.  The Town shall issue a bill to the Authority and the District for the 

GWS Water delivered under this Agreement.  The bill will be for the actual amount of GWS 

Water scheduled to be delivered to the Water Delivery System pursuant to Paragraphs 6.1 and 

6.2 above and for which the Town has been billed and has paid.  The amount billed shall be paid 

within Forty Five (45) days from the date of the bill.  Late payments shall incur interest at the 

rate of 12% per annum from the date of delinquency of any such payment. The Authority and 

the District shall prepay in whole or in part their respective share of the cost for the GWS Water 

to be delivered under this Agreement. The District shall reimburse the other parties for any 

payments made for the delivery of water later canceled or not accepted by the District. 

8. Final Accounting.  In the event there is determined to have been an 

overpayment or underpayment for GWS Water by any party, the Parties will make any 

appropriate adjustment to the amount paid hereunder within forty five (45) days of the 

determination. 

9. Hold Harmless. The Authority and the Town shall not be responsible for the 

control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of GWS Water.  The Parties shall hold 

each other harmless from damages or claims attributable to the negligent acts of a particular 

party arising out of the use of the GWS Water, any damages payable, or obligations arising as a 

result of such negligent acts shall be the sole responsibility of the negligent party. 

10. Quality of Water.  No Party makes any warranty as to the quality of any GWS 

Water and no Party is under any obligation to construct or furnish water treatment facilities to 

maintain or better the quality of any GWS Water. 

11. Accrual and Recovery of Town’s Stored Water Credits. 



 
 7 

11.1 Pursuant to the Storage Permit, the Authority shall accrue Stored Water 

Credits for and on behalf of the Town in a long term storage account with ADWR for in lieu 

water delivered to the District. The Town may use such credits at its sole discretion consistent 

with this Agreement. 

11.2 Recovery of Stored Water Credits shall be allowed from wells that the 

Town is permitted to recover Central Arizona Project water from, subject to the requirements 

and constraints of the recovery well permit, including any subsequent amendments. 

12. Records and Reporting.  The parties will maintain records and accounts of 

deliveries, storage and uses of water under this Agreement, on the basis of information 

received from CAWCD and the District. The District will furnish the Authority and the Town with 

all groundwater pump reports and information required.  The Authority will file any reports 

required by the Storage Permit. Copies of all such records, accounts and reports shall be made 

available to the other parties upon request. 

13. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date first written 

above or the date it is filed with the Pinal County Recorder as required by Arizona Revised 

Statutes §11-952(G), whichever is later, when fully executed by the Parties and upon the 

receipt of all regulatory and other approvals necessary for the implementation thereof.  The 

deliveries of GWS Water under this Agreement shall commence as soon after the issuance of 

the Storage Permit as possible. 

14. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall remain in effect for a period of one (1) 

year from the Effective Date set forth in Paragraph 13 above, unless sooner terminated in 

accordance with Paragraph 16 below. The parties further agree that this Agreement may be 



 
 8 

extended for additional one (1) year periods, subject to termination as set forth herein, and 

subject to acceptability of CAP M&I water pricing, availability of revenue for the purposes of 

this Agreement, availability of water, and the level of participation of other operating units in 

the GWSP contemplated by this Agreement. 

15. Compliance with Repayment Contract. The parties acknowledge that the 

provisions of this Agreement shall in all respects comply with the terms of the Contract 

between the United States and CAWCD for Delivery of Water and Repayment of Costs of the 

Central Arizona Project, Contract No.: 14-06-W-245, Amendment No.1, dated December 1, 

1988.  

16. Termination.  If any party fails to perform any obligation under this Agreement, 

including the payment of any charges required of the party, the other party or parties may 

terminate this Agreement, which termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after mailing 

written notice of default to the defaulting party. The defaulting party shall remain obligated to 

pay all charges required to be paid under this Agreement through and including the last day of 

the term of this Agreement. 

17. Notices.  Any notice, demand or request authorized or required by this 

Agreement shall be deemed to have been given when mailed, postage prepaid, or delivered as 

follows: 

If to Town:  Town of Florence 
Town Manager 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 

 
If to the District: General Manager 

Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District 



 
 9 

P.O. Box 605 
Eloy, Arizona 85131 

 
If to the Authority: Pinal County Water Augmentation Authority 

Post Office Box 12684 
Casa Grande, Arizona 85130 

 
The designation of the addressee or the address may be changed by notice given in the 

same manner as provided in this paragraph. 

18. General Provisions. 

18.1 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement and each 

term, provision and condition hereof. 

18.2 Waiver.  No waiver by any Party of any default or breach by any other 

Party hereto shall be deemed to be or constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent default or 

breach.     

18.3  Binding Effect.  All terms, provisions and conditions hereof shall be 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and 

assigns. 

18.4 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, and all other documents 

contemplated or described herein which are or have been or shall be executed by the Parties 

hereto, accurately and completely reflect the mutual understanding of the Parties as to all 

matters addressed herein and therein, and there exists no other agreements, understandings, 

written or oral, between the Parties and no expectations which are not specifically set forth 

herein. 

18.5 Attorney's Fees and Costs.  In the event of a dispute, the successful party 



 
 10 

shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.  

18.6 Counterpart Executions. This Agreement may be executed in multiple 

counterparts, and when a counterpart has been executed by each of the Parties hereto, such 

counterparts, taken together, shall constitute a single agreement.  Duplicate originals may also 

be utilized, each of which shall be deemed an original document.  

 18.7 Conflict of Interest. The parties acknowledge that the Town may be 

entitled to terminate this Agreement in the event of a conflict of interest pursuant to the 

provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes. 

 18.8 Acknowledgment of Dual Representation of Legal Counsel. The 

Authority and Town each acknowledge that the law firm of Cooper & Rueter, L.L.P. represents 

the Authority and the Town of Florence in a similar Agreement and that legal counsel for the 

Authority did not draft this Agreement but has reviewed this Agreement as to form and state 

law requirements for Intergovernmental Agreements.  The Authority and Town hereby waives 

any claim as to conflict of interest as a result of the law firm of Cooper & Rueter, L.L.P. 

representing the Authority and if applicable the City of Eloy. 

 

THIS AGREEMENT EXECUTED this                 Day of                                          , 2015. 

Pinal County Water Augmentation Authority 

 
 

Attest:                                      By ______________________________ 
Secretary     Its Chairman 

 
 
 



 
 11 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Authority Attorney 
 

 
Town of Florence 

 
 
Attest:                                      By ______________________________ 

Town Clerk      Mayor 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Town Attorney 

Central Arizona Irrigation & Drainage District 
 

 
Attest:                                       By: _______________________________________ 
 Secretary     Its President 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_______________________ 
District Attorney 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7b. 

MEETING DATE:  October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia 
                                      Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   IGA for election services 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   
 Other 

 

Subject:  Pinal Co IGA for election services                                                                Meeting Date:  October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDATION MOTION/ACTION 
 
Approval of entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Pinal County for 
election services. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
 
The Town of Florence will hold a special election on May 17, 2016.    The IGA will allow 
Pinal County to conduct an all-mail ballot election on behalf of the Town of Florence. 
The IGA is for election services authorizing the Town to utilize the voter registration 
information and election services for printing and election equipment. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Staff has dollars in the budget for conducting a special election.     
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval of the IGA with Pinal County for election services. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Pinal County IGA 
 
  
 
 
 
 



- 1 - 

Subject:  Intergovernmental Agreements   

In order to supply your Municipality with Election and Voter Registration services, please 
complete the attached Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA).  

Fill in all applicable areas and obtain signatures from the appropriate parties (including 
your legal counsel).

Upon completion, please return the IGA to the address listed on the upper right hand 
corner of the Agreement.  To ensure that all statutory and legal requirements are met (by 
all parties), the signed IGA must be in our office at least one hundred twenty days prior to 
the Election Date.

After all signatures have been obtained, and the IGA is approved by the Pinal County 
Board of Supervisors, you will receive an approved copy.  If you have any questions, 
please contact our Voter Registration Department at 520 866-6861. 

31 N PINAL ST BUILDING E * PO BOX 848 * FLORENCE, AZ 85132 
PH (520) 866-6830 * FAX (520) 866-6831 * TDD (520) 866-6851 

pinalcountyaz.gov/Departments/Recorder

PINAL COUNTY RECORDER 
VIRGINIA ROSS 



- 2 - 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR PROVISION OF 
SERVICES BY THE PINAL COUNTY RECORDER 

AND ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this _______ day of _________________, 20 _____, 

between Pinal County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter referred to as “County”, 

and _____________________________________, hereinafter referred to as “Municipality”. 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. Section 11-952 allows public agencies to contract for services and enter into 

agreements; and,  

WHEREAS, Municipality may hold Special/Regular elections for bond issues, recalls, overrides, 

etc. pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 9-231, 9-523, 19-201 et seq., and, 

            WHEREAS, County is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 11-251 (3), 16-172, and 16-511, et 

seq., to perform services concerning elections, and,  

WHEREAS, County and Municipality have determined that the use of certain services of the 

Pinal County Elections Department and the Pinal County Recorder’s Office is in the public interest, and 

the County agrees to provide such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of and stipulations set forth 

herein, the parties agree as follows:    

1. The purpose of this Agreement is to secure the services of the County for the preparation and

conduct of _____________________________ election (s) to be held on  ________________.
               Name of election                                     Date of election   

To be completed by Municipality: 

Contact name       

Title        

Address        

Phone Number       

Completed Agreement filed and 
returned to: 
Pinal County Recorder 
Voter Registration Dept  
P. O. Box 848 
Florence, AZ 85132 

Lisa Garcia
Town Clerk

PO Box 2670
Florence, AZ 85132

520-868-7552

Town of Florence

Special Election May 17, 2016



- 3 - 

2. The Services provided by the County Elections Department are:   

a. Prepare ballot formats for the Municipality to be approved by the Jurisdiction. 

b. Provide the sample ballots with the Municipality measures’ positions according to 
precincts within the boundaries of the Municipality.

c. Provide sample ballots, if required, for public distribution and issue them through the 
Municipality.

d. Provide ballots to be used in each precinct, which will allow qualified electors to vote for 
the Municipality Candidates and/or Measures. 

e. Conduct logic and accuracy tests as required by law and publishing all legal notices in 
connection therewith. 

f. Tally official results of the election(s), utilizing paper ballots or electronic ballot counting 
equipment as mutually agreed upon between Municipality and County.

g. Cause the precinct election boards to utilize the copies of precinct registers, prepared from 
the records of the County Recorder, for the purpose of identifying the electors qualified to 
vote in the above-mentioned election(s).  

3. The Services provided by the County Recorder are:

a. Provide copies of precinct registers of qualified electors for precincts contained partially or 
wholly within the Municipality limits.  Said registers shall be prepared from the voter 
registration records of the County Recorder

b. Early Voting – Indicate only one below  

Municipality authorizes County Recorder to handle all Early Voting 
Functions.

Municipality will be handling Early Voting functions.  The County Recorder 
will provide the following:   

� A list of qualified electors who are eligible to vote early:  such lists are to be 
used solely by the Municipality for Early Voting, or such other election related 
purposes as may be specifically authorized by law.

� A list of permanent early voters within the Municipality that are to 
automatically be mailed an early ballot.  Said lists shall be generated from the 
voter registration records of the County Recorder.

✔



- 4 - 

4. Obligation of Municipality.  The Municipality or designate thereof agrees to: 

a. Provide the Elections Department with a certification of the measures to appear on the 
official ballot for the Special/Regular election.

b. Provide a certified list of measures and the order of appearance of the measures to the 
Elections Department ninety (90) days prior to the election. 

c. Provide nomination petitions and other necessary information to prospective candidates for 
council positions.

d. Accept candidates’ nomination documents for filing.   

e. Accept candidates’ financial disclosure statements.  

f. Accept all campaign finance statements and expenditure reports from candidates and/or 
candidates’ campaign committees. 

g. Provide the County Elections Office with the names of any Write-in candidates as 
prescribed by law.

h. Prepare and Issue certificates of the result of the election. 

i. Publish all legal notices in connection with a municipal election with the exception of the 
logic and accuracy test notification as described in Section 2 (e) of this agreement.  

j. If the Municipality chooses to conduct their own early voting, provide the County 
Recorder, upon receipt and prior to processing early ballots, copies of the complete 
Applications of Early Ballots for signature comparison by the County Recorder or other 
officer in charge of elections as required by A.R.S. Section 16-550 (A).  These copies can 
be provided by mail, hand delivery, or fax as time constraints dictate.   

k. Pay to County, on a reimbursable basis, all costs of personnel, election materials, and 
supplies expended by County pursuant to this Agreement.  Municipality will make said 
payment to County within fourteen (14) days after presentation by County of demand for 
said payment.  

l. If the Municipality chooses to conduct their own early voting, a list of all “Inactive Status” 
electors who voted in the election pursuant to A.R.S. Section 16-583 shall be provided to 
the County Recorder.

m.  Agree to be a point of contact regarding conditional provisional ballots – in that a voter of 
a conditional provisional ballot can take an acceptable type of personal identification to 
qualify the subject conditional provisional ballot; document what type of identification is 
provided indicating any identification numbers and issue dates; provide a daily receipt of 
identification forms from conditional provisional ballot holders by the Municipality 



- 5 - 

Clerk’s office that will be forwarded to the Voter Registration Department of the Pinal 
County Recorder.  This can be done by fax or hand-carried.

5. Manner of Financing and Budgeting. Each party represents that it has sufficient funds 

available in its current fiscal year budget to discharge the funding obligation imposed by this 

Agreement, and agrees that such funds shall be solely available therefore.    

6. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate upon all matters connected with the election 

being resolved, legal challenges excepted or upon written notice by either party to the other 

within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement.  Should the election herein be 

challenged or questioned for any reason whatsoever, then, in such event, Municipality shall be 

solely responsible for defending, legally or otherwise, said election.

7. Indemnification of County. To the extent allowed by law, the County agrees to indemnify 

and hold harmless the District from all injuries to persons or property caused by the acts or 

omissions of the County arising out of the County’s activities under this Agreement.  To the 

extent allowed by law, the District agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County from all 

injuries to persons or property caused by the acts or omissions of the District arising out of the 

District’s activities under this Agreement. 

8. Effective Date and Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective upon approval 

by the Pinal County Board of Supervisors, and shall terminate as provided in 6 above.    

9. Nondiscrimination.  The parties shall comply with Executive Order 2009-9 and all other 

applicable State and Federal employment laws, rules, and regulations, mandating that all 

persons shall have equal access to employment opportunities, and that no person shall be 

discriminated against due to race, creed, color, religion, sex, national origin or disability.

10. Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement or application thereof to the County, 

Municipality, person or circumstances is held invalid; such invalidity shall not affect other 



- 6 - 

provisions or applications of this Agreement, which can be given effect, without the invalid 

provision or application and to the end the provisions of the Agreement are declared to be 

severable.

11. E-Verify/Immigration. The parties warrant and represent to each other that they are in 

compliance with the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA), A.R.S. Sections 41-

4401 and 23-214, and all other federal and state immigration laws and regulations.

12. Cancellation.  This Agreement may be canceled by either party for conflict of interest 

pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-511.

13. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Arizona 

and by applicable federal law.

14. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between parties concerning 

its subject matter and any amendment to this Agreement shall not be made except by mutual 

written agreement of the parties.  

15. Notices.  All notice required by this Agreement shall be sent by U.S certified mail, return 

receipt requested, or delivered by hand to the party at the address indicated or such other 

address requested by notice to the other party.  A notice shall be considered given when 

received.

County:  Pinal     Municipality:  

Name, Title:  Pinal County Recorder  Name, Title:  

Address: P.O. Box 848, Florence AZ 85132 Address:        

17. Waiver.  A waiver by either party of any of the terms, conditions and covenants to be 

performed by the other shall not be construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach, nor of 

any other term, condition, or covenant contained in this Agreement.  

Town of Florence

Town Clerk

P.O. Box 2470, Florence, AZ 85132



- 7 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement the day and year first 

above written.

   

Forvr40 iga municipalities 6_23_2015 

MUNICIPALITY 

__________________________________
Printed Name 

BY:  ______________________________ 
Name/Title  

ATTEST:   

BY:  ______________________________ 
Clerk, Municipality 

Approved as to form:  
And within the powers and authority granted under the 

laws of this State to the District 

BY:  ______________________________ 
Attorney, Municipality 

PINAL COUNTY 

BY:  ______________________________ 
Virginia Ross 

Pinal County Recorder 

PINAL COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS

BY:  ______________________________ 
Chairman

ATTEST:   

BY:  ______________________________ 
Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Approved as to form:  

BY:  ______________________________ 
Deputy County Attorney 

Town of Florence



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

MEETING DATE:  October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:   Donation of computers to the Globe Fire   

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: Approval of donating computers to Globe Fire Department                       Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

                     Department  Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the donation of four discontinued Panasonic Tough Book computers 
to the Globe Fire Department and to receive a donation of five Wildland Fire Shelters. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Panasonic Tough Book computers are two generations old and are no longer 
utilized by the Fire Department as they do not support the current operating software.   
In exchange for the computers, the Globe Fire Department will be donating five 
Wildland Fire Shelters to the Florence Fire Department.  The shelters are needed to be 
in compliance with the Arizona State Forestry Cooperative Agreement, which requires 
the Fire Department to carry shelters for its’ crew members. If the shelters were to be 
purchased, they would cost the Department $380 each. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current value of the computers is estimated at $150 each or a total of $600.  The 
donation value of the shelters to the Fire Department is $1,900.  There is no financial 
impact to the Town. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the donation of the four Panasonic Tough Book 
computers to the Globe Fire Department in exchange for a donation of five Wildland 
Fire Shelters from the Globe Fire Department. The Town of Florence Information 
Technology Department supports the donation due to the “end of life” for this product 
within our organization. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7d. 

MEETING DATE:  October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resignation of Billie Jo Garcia from the Planning 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Billie Jo Garcia resignation from Planning and Zoning Commission           Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

                     and Zoning Commission 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the resignation of Billie Jo Garcia from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In response to the letter of resignation of Billie Jo Garcia from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, action is recommended to accept her resignation and to fill her vacated 
position. 
 
With Ms. Garcia’s departure from the Planning and Zoning Commission due to personal 
reasons, that leaves the following active members on the Commission: 
 
Gary J. Pranzo  (term expiring 12/31/2015) 
 
Larry Putrick   (term expiring 12/31/2015) 
 
James Petty   (term expiring 12/31/2015) 
 
Bruce Fenstermaker (term expiring 12/31/2017) 
 
Currently, the Town of Florence has no alternate members available for the position of 
Planning and Zoning Commission seat. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact with this request. 
 
 
 



Subject:  Billie Jo Garcia resignation from Planning and Zoning Commission           Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the resignation of Billie Jo Garcia from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission be accepted. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resignation letter  



From: Billie Jo Garcia  
Sent: Thursday, September 24, 2015 5:21 PM 
Cc: Gilbert Olgin 
Subject: Re: October 1st PZ Commission meeting 
 
Hello Gilbert,  
 
Given a recent change in my employment situation, I feel it is better to relinquish my seat on the 
commission. I am currently on the east coast and unsure if future employment will be in Arizona 
or elsewhere. I am grateful for the opportunity to serve the community of Florence as a P and Z 
commissioner and appreciative of the sincerity, integrity, passion and camaraderie of my fellow 
commissioners and the staff of ED for Florence.  Thank you for giving me the opportunity and 
please forgive the inconvenience of filling my seat before the end of my term.   
 
Billie Jo  
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
7e.  

MEETING DATE: October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resignation of Bruce Fenstermaker from the  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Bruce Fenstermaker’s resignation - Planning and Zoning Commission    Meeting Date:  October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

                     Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the resignation of Bruce Fenstermaker from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In response to the letter of resignation of Bruce Fenstermaker from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, acti 
on is recommended to accept his resignation and to fill his vacated position. 
 
With Mr. Fenstermaker’s departure from the Planning and Zoning Commission due to 
personal reasons, it leaves the following active members on the Commission: 
 
Gary J. Pranzo  (term expiring 12/31/2015) 
 
Larry Putrick   (term expiring 12/31/2015) 
 
James Petty   (term expiring 12/31/2015) 
 
Currently, the Town of Florence has no alternate members available for the position of 
Planning and Zoning Commission seat. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
No fiscal impact with this request. 
 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Bruce Fenstermaker’s resignation - Planning and Zoning Commission    Meeting Date:  October 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the resignation of Bruce Fenstermaker from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission be accepted. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resignation letter  



From:  Bruce Fenstermaker  
Sent:   Wednesday, October 14, 2015 12:54 PM 
To:   Lisa Garcia 
Subject:  Resignation 
 
 
On this day October 14, 2015, I hereby resign my position as Commissioner on the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
 
Signed, 
 
Bruce Fenstermaker 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
SEPTEMBER 8, 2015, AT 6:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
Absent:   Woolridge 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 1 of 9 
 

 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk, explained that there were technical 
difficulties with the video equipment not properly working and that only the audio of the 
meeting was being recorded.  She stated that if, and when, staff obtained a video 
camera, that portion of the meeting would be recorded. 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 
Public hearing on a request by Solar Star Arizona VII, LLC (a subsidiary of 
SunPower Corporation, Systems [SunPower]) for approval of an application 
proposing a zone change from initial comparable zoning, Single-Residential 
Ranchette (R1-R), to Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning to develop a 
photovoltaic solar facility on approximately 282 acres of land. The Bonnybrooke 
Solar Project is a proposed utility-scale photovoltaic (PV) solar energy facility 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 2 of 9 
 

planned for the subject site that is generally bounded by Diversion Dam Road to 
the south, the Bonnybrooke Road alignment to the north, Padilla Road to the 
west and the Quail Run Road alignment to the east; and First reading of 
Ordinance No. 637-15: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE BONNYBROOKE SOLAR PROJECT 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PZ 15-48 PUD).  
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the request from Solar 
Star Arizona VII, LLC, a subsidiary of SunPower Corporation Systems, is to develop 
the Bonnybrooke Solar Project on a portion of the property in the proposed annexation.  
He stated that the request is for a zone change from initial comparable zoning, Single-
Residential Ranchette (R1-R), to Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning which 
would allow for the proposed utility-scale photovoltaic (PV) solar energy facility to be 
constructed and operated.  He stated that the project will cover roughly 282 acres of 
land that may produce up to 50 megawatts (MW) of energy. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the project is concurrently proceeding through the construction 
plan review process to allow for the project to commence upon approval of the pending 
annexation and minor zone change by Town Council. 
 
Councilmember Anderson thanked SunPower Corporation Systems for the information 
they had provided Council and staff and for providing an on-site tour to educate 
Council regarding their project. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.  There were no public comments.  Mayor 
Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
Presentation of a Years of Service Award to Tom Rankin for 12 years of service 
and dedication to effective local government in Arizona. 
 
Councilmember Anderson presented Mayor Tom Rankin his 12-year service award on 
behalf of the League of Cities and Towns and the Town. 
  
Mayor Rankin stated that he started working for the Town of Florence in 1980 and at 
that time the Town had a volunteer Fire Department, a seven member Police 
Department, a Public Works Department staffed by relatives and a Parks and 
Recreation program that was mainly the baseball/softball fields.  He stated in 1980 the 
Town of Florence was two square miles and today it is slightly over 63 square miles 
and as the Town annexes in more land and communities, it will continue to grow and 
ensure the future of Florence.  He stated that he is blessed to have been able to serve 
the Town of Florence and its citizens who have entrusted him to lead their town. 
 
Presentation of a Years of Service Award to Tom Smith for 12 years of service 
and dedication to effective local government in Arizona.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 3 of 9 
 

Mayor Rankin presented to Mr. Tom Smith his 12-year service award stating that Town 
Council, staff and the citizens of Florence appreciates his work and dedication to the 
Town.  
 
Mr. Tom Smith accepted his award. 
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
Proclamation of the Mayor declaring the week of September 17 through 23, 2015, 
as Constitution Week. 
 
Proclamation of the Mayor declaring September 2015 as Grandfamily/Kinship Care 
Month.   
 
Approval of accepting the register of demands ending July 31, 2015, in the 
amount of $6,449,280.36. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 635-15: 
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 635-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF 
TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND 
AMENDMENTS THERETO, BY ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS 
TO THE EXISTING TOWN LIMITS OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
(BONNYBROOKE SOLAR PROJECT ANNEXATION NO. 2015-02).  (First Reading) 
 
Ordinance No. 639-15:   
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 639-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE FLORENCE TOWN CODE BY STRIKING SECTION 10.15 AND 
30.45 TO 30.51 AND CREATING NEW SECTION 10.15 AND 30.45 to 30.53 
ENTITLED ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS. (First Reading) 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 4 of 9 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that staff is recommending modifications to the Town Code that better 
states how an ordinance or resolution is adopted, when publishing in the newspaper is 
required, where the posting locations are and which documents will be recorded in the 
Pinal County Recorder’s Office.  She stated that the ordinance sets standards for when 
an ordinance is required and specifies under what conditions. 
 
Resolution No. 1560-15: 
 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1560-15 by title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING LOCATIONS, DATES AND TIMES FOR 
TOWN OF FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TOWN BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that this resolution would establish the regular meeting times for all 
Town boards and commissions moving their meeting location to the Library and 
Community Center, located at 778 N. Main Street, Florence, Arizona for the following: 
 

• Arts and Culture Commission meetings 
• Historic District Advisory Commission meetings 
• Library Advisory Board meetings 
• Parks and Recreation Advisory Board meetings 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that Council Regular and Special Meetings and Planning and Zoning 
Commission Meetings will remain at Town Hall.  Work Sessions and trainings that do 
not require filming will be moved to the Library and Community Center. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if all board and commissions had been notified of the change in 
meeting location. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that all boards and commission have been advised of the location 
change and been provided a copy of the draft resolution, pending Council approval. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded my Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1560-15. 
 
Resolution No. 1561-15 
 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1561-15 by title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE, 
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 8, 2015. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 5 of 9 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that she and Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, reviewed the 
Florence Town Council Rules of Procedure that were amended by Council at the March 
2, 2015 Council meeting.  She stated that with the relocation of the library, which is a 
posting site for the Town, it became necessary to review the Rules of Procedure.  She 
stated that the changes comply with the suggestions of the Arizona Ombudsmen. 
 
Mayor Rankin suggested that Council review the recommended changes for action at a 
future meeting. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff is requesting adoption and advised Council of a few key 
changes which include updates recommended by the Arizona Ombudsmen Office that 
are in compliance with recent changes to State law.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Call to Council at the end of a meeting my only contain 
current events and that at a future meeting, staff will be coming back to Council to 
address elections and politicking on the floor.  She stated that the laws have become 
very strict regarding these actions.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired as to what the definition of current events was. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that per the Arizona Ombudsmen Office, current events are items that 
are on the agenda or in a report for that particular meeting.  She stated that if an action 
was taken during a meeting that was not on the agenda, then Council would have to go 
back and ratify that action.  She stated that congratulating a high school sports team is 
not an action but a statement thus the Open Meeting Law had not been violated. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he does not believe Council has violated the Open Meeting 
Law by supporting or congratulating local youth sports. 
 
Ms. Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that in the opinion of the Arizona 
Ombudsmen, as long as there is not a discussion of items related to Town business, the 
intent of the meaning of current events in the Open Meeting Law is being adhered to. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to when during a meeting is it appropriate for a 
Councilmember to request an item be placed on a future agenda.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that a Councilmember may make a request during the Call to the 
Public or Council which is clearly stated in the State Statute. 
No action was taken.  

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of renewal and extension of Prosecutor Legal  
LLC, for prosecutor services with a term extending through October 31, 2015. 
 
Mr. Mattice stated that it would be prudent to have Mr. Richard Husk continue providing 
legal services to the Town to assist with ongoing matters and with current cases.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 6 of 9 
 

 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to approve the extension of the Prosecutor Legal Services Agreement with Richard V. 
Husk, of the Law Offices of Richard V. Husk, LLC, for prosecutor services, in an amount 
not to exceed $10,000 with a term extended through October 31, 2015. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of an Administrative Memorandum to 
temporarily lessen the enforcement of sign code regulations. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that she requested that Mr. Eckhoff, Community Development 
Director, place this item on the agenda in light of a recent Supreme Court decision 
pertaining to sign code regulations.  She stated that based on this decision, the Town 
will need to make changes to the Town’s Sign Code to become compliant.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that in the past year and half, the Town has been watching the court 
case which called into question the constitutionality of most sign codes throughout the 
United States.  Staff has begun the process of reviewing the Town’s sign code 
regulations, researching applicable legal issues and looking for recently adopted and or 
amended model codes that the Town can use for reference.  Staff will draft a complete 
re-write of the Town’s Sign Code, addressing the legal and constitutional issues and to 
create a more user-friendly code.  The process will take some time so staff has 
prepared an Administrative Memorandum that seeks to temporarily lessen the 
enforcement of sign code regulations for a period effective September 9, 2015 and 
extending to no later than April 30, 2016, to not enforce regulations on existing 
permanent or temporary on-site commercial signs, except where enforcement of such 
signs is necessary for life safety purposes.  He stated that during this time, the Town will 
continue to permit new signs that comply with applicable sign regulations and consult 
with the Town Manager and Town Attorney on any requests for new signs that may not 
appear to be in strict compliance with applicable codes, but may be allowable under the 
auspices of the recent Supreme Court decision. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that staff would like to hold a public hearing and a work session to 
allow for input from business owners, citizens and with Council to ensure the Town’s 
Sign Code is user friendly and in compliance with the Supreme Court ruling. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he would like to have a work session with the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to ensure everyone has the same thought process 
regarding the re-write of the codes. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if enforcement is going to occur regarding temporary 
signs that are placed in right-of-ways or are obstructing vehicular vision on the 
roadways. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that signs that are placed obstructing vehicular vision or causing a 
safety concern will be addressed. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 7 of 9 
 

 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how the information would be brought back to Council. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that staff will be utilizing the model ordinance it has.  They hope to 
obtain additional model ordinances from other municipalities and continue to work with 
the Town Attorney to create an ordinance that is reflective of Florence as well as be 
compliant with the Supreme Court ruling.  Staff will provide the revised draft copy of the 
ordinance to Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission during a combined work 
session.  He stated at that session Councilmembers or Commissioners can suggest 
changes, additions or modifications that they believe are in the best interest of Florence 
and in compliance with the Supreme Court ruling. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Arizona Planning Association is involved in any code 
development in light of the Supreme Court ruling. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Arizona Planning Association held a workshop that he and 
the Town Attorney attended, with colleagues and representatives from the sign industry, 
which advised the attendees to proceed with caution without a full moratorium on signs 
until codes can be rewritten.  He stated that the Arizona Planning Association, the 
International Sign Association, and the Municipal Attorney Association are all working 
on sign codes, based on the Supreme Court ruling, but not too many communities have 
come forward as the first to rewrite their code.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to how long staff believed it would take to re-write the Town’s 
Sign Code. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated he estimates that it  will take six to eight months to complete the full 
re-write of the code.  He stated during this time, signs requests will be reviewed and 
extra caution will be taken to ensure the request is compliant with the Supreme Court 
ruling and is good for the Town of Florence. 
 
Mr. Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that the International Municipal Attorney 
Association has created a first draft of a model code and each municipality throughout 
the Country may use the draft code or choose to write their own as their legal counsel 
and local government interpret the Supreme Courts’ ruling. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that during the six to eight months to complete the re-write process, 
Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission will be meeting with staff prior to and 
during the process to ensure the code is being written in a user-friendly compliant 
manner with the best interest of Florence. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to keep in mind that signs are the best form of 
advertising for businesses and the best way to locate a business when driving through 
town.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 8 of 9 
 

Councilmember Anderson stated that he hoped that signs that are not in compliance 
with the new code be identified and a plan is put in place on how those signs will be 
addressed. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to approve the Administrative Memorandum to temporarily lesson the enforcement of 
sign code regulations. 

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

Manager’s Report 
Department Reports 

Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
Public Works 

 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired as to what the status was of the land along State 
Route 79 that has a handmade sign saying Casa Taco which is located directly across 
the street from the location of the new Taco Bell that has been approved. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the owner of the property who also owns the adjacent property 
was in negotiations with the restaurant but it appears they have stalled and the owner 
was premature in putting the sign up.  He stated that staff will contact the owner and 
obtain an update to see if negotiations are still occurring or if the sign needs to be 
removed.  He stated that the Taco Bell across the street from this location is proceeding 
forward.  He stated that the plans have been approved and the developer is working 
with the Historical Society to relocate the ice box on the property and are in their final 
plans in securing a general contractor and should start construction this month. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to what the results were from the traffic control 
analysis Public Works conducted on Merrill Ranch Parkway, Sun City Boulevard and 
Constitution. 
 
Mr. Wayne Costa, Public Works Director, stated that they installed oversized stop signs.  
Pavement markers have been scheduled for installation denoting a stop ahead.  Stop a 
head sign have been installed along Merrill Ranch Parkway.  He stated in conjunction 
with Pulte, landscaping has been trimmed back or removed to allow for better visibility 
of traffic control signs and that the balance of the intersections have been reviewed and 
it was determined that they have adequate traffic control signage. 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2015 
Page 9 of 9 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no comments. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she would like to express her appreciation to Mr. Tom 
Smith and Mayor Tom Rankin who have worked hard and are dedicated to the Town of 
Florence.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she recently took a tour of the new Library/Community 
Center and encouraged everyone to take a moment and visit the facility and take 
advantage of the many offerings it has. 
 
Mayor Rankin thanks Councilmember Guilin for her kind words and stated that it has 
been his pleasure to serve the Town for the past 12 years as a member of Council or as 
Mayor.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 6:58 pm.  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on September 8, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2015, AT 8:00 PM, IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN 
HALL, LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 8:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:     
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 
 
 

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Resolution No. 1565-15: 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1565-15 by 
title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
GRANTING A PERPETUAL, NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT FOR IRRIGATION 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, BUREAU OF INDIAN 
AFFAIRS, SAN CARLOS IRRIGATION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION 
BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the construction of the 
Territory Square Project required existing irrigation facilities be relocated and piped in a 
new alignment to the north and west of the Phase One development site.  He stated 
upon review of the of the easement granted by Council through the adoption of 
Resolution No. 1525-15, the easement grantee is requiring a few minor modifications to 
the easement prior to accepting and recording of the easement.  He stated that 
Resolution No. 1565-15 will override Resolution No. 1525-15. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Councilmember Anderson inquired as to what the requested changes were. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the significant requested changes were to specify that the 
easement was perpetual and non-exclusive. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded my Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1565-15. 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purpose of discussion of the public body in accordance with A.R.S. §38-
431.03 (A) (1) to review the applications received for the position of Town 
Manager and discuss candidates to be interviewed.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he did not believe that Council needed to go to 
Executive Session and recommended that Council accept applications for another 30 
days. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
Roll Call: 
Boardmember Woolridge: Yes 
Boardmember Guilin: No 
Boardmember Anderson: No 
Boardmember Wall: Yes 
Boardmember Hawkins: No 
Vice-Mayor Walter: No 
Mayor Rankin: No 
 
Motion failed:  Yes: 2; No: 5 
 
Mayor Rankin directed staff to schedule an Executive Session the second regularly 
scheduled Council Meeting in October. 
 
Ms. Garcia inquired if Council would like staff to advertise the job opening for Town 
Manager with any other service other than those that are already being utilized. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired when was the last time staff received a resume for the position 
of Town Manager. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that a resume was received today. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Mayor Rankin stated that he would like staff to continue with existing postings, updating 
the notice with the new cut-off date and expand posting areas to all services available to 
the Town. 
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL - CURRENT EVENT 
 
There were no comments. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:07 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on September 14, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to 
order and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 













































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director         
                                      
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 640-15: 1st Street Zone Change        

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
 
Subject: Ordinance No. 640-15 1st Street Zone Change                          Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 5 

                    (PZ-15-50-ZC) 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt  Ordinance No. 640-15:   AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .36 
ACRES, FROM NEIGHBORHOOD MULTIPLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT (R-2) TO 
HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT (B-2) (APN 200-47-001B). 

REQUEST: 

Piero Buccellato requests approval of the following application: 
 
A zone change request to change the zoning on approximately .36 acres, located 
at 680 East 1st Street, Florence, Arizona, from Neighborhood Multi-Family 
Zoning District (R-2) to Highway Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2) (APN 
200-47-001B). 
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Buccellato family has operated the popular A & M Pizza restaurant for years.  The 
family is now looking at a potential opportunity to expand their business presence in 
Florence on the subject and adjacent site. 
 
Piero and Paolo Buccellato have purchased two properties off of 1st Street and State 
Route 79.  One lot is zoned Highway Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2) and the 
other lot is zoned Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District (R-2). 
 
The intent of this application is to rezone the subject R-2 zoned property and then 
expand on to the existing development on the B-2 lot by adding parking, landscaping 
and other needed improvements.  Finding suitable sites off of State Route 79 has been 
an ongoing task until the opportunity to combine these two parcels became a viable 
option.   



 
Subject: Ordinance No.          1st Street Zone Change                          Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 5 

 
This combination of lots is vital to the proposed commercial/retail uses in order to 
accommodate site improvements, setbacks and Arizona Department of Transportation 
(ADOT) required right-of-way. The subject parcels are designated as Highway Mixed 
Use (HMU) in the Town 2020 General Plan and the HMU designation is primarily 
intended to assist with the revitalization of older areas and to provide for a mix of 
highway-oriented retail goods and commercial services for commuters, workers and 
residents.   
 
The public hearing and first reading of Ordinance No. 640-15 was held on October 5, 
2015. 
 
ANALYSIS:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Surrounding Land Uses and  Zoning  Districts: 

  
Zoning Classification 

 
Existing Use 

 
North 

Territory Square 
Planned Unit Development 

Zoning District 
(PUD) 

 
Town Facilities 

 
East 

Highway Business Commercial 
Zoning District 

(B-2) 

 
Commercial 

Retail/Professional Office 
 

South 
Neighborhood Multi-Family 

Zoning District 
(R-2)

 
Residential 

 
West 

Single-Family Residential 
(R1-6) 

 
Residential 

 
On-Site 

Neighborhood Multi-Family 
Zoning District 

(R-2)

 
Commercial Retail 



 
Subject: Ordinance No.          1st Street Zone Change                          Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Map of the Area 

 
The overall development site consists of two parcels: one parcel is situated fronting 
State Route 79 and the second parcel is located behind the highway frontage property.  
The front lot is zoned Highway Business Commercial Zoning District (B-2) and the rear 
lot is zoned Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District (R-2).  The subject R-2 parcel 
has no permanent structure(s) on site.  The applicant will combine the two parcels if the 
zone change is approved by the Town Council. 
 
The applicant has attended Technical Review Committee (TRC) meetings with staff and 
has worked diligently to respond to staff concerns.  The Design Review application for a 
proposed parking, landscaping and other improvements for the restaurant are 
anticipated soon. 
 
FINDINGS: 



 
Subject: Ordinance No.          1st Street Zone Change                          Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 4 of 5 

 
Staff offers the following findings for the consideration of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and Town Council: 
 

1. The proposed zoning is consistent with the Town of Florence 2020 General Plan, 
specifically the Highway Mixed Use (HMU) designation. 
 

2. The proposed zoning and development of the site should facilitate ongoing 
revitalization and redevelopment efforts along the State Route 79 Corridor. 
 

3. Minimal impact will result to surrounding property owners from proposed zone 
change. 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
A notice for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing was mailed to all 
property owners within 300 feet of the site.  Property posting for notice of public 
hearings was posted on site and advertisements in the local Town paper per Town 
requirements.  Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 and Town of 
Florence Development Code, a public hearing is required for a Zone Change.  
 
The applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting on August 26, 2015.  Additionally, 
staff notes that, as of this writing, no public comments have been received for or against 
the zone change. 
 
HEARING DATES: 
 
The tentative Planning and Zoning Commission/Town Council meeting schedule for this 
application is as follows: 
 
August 26, 2015   Neighborhood Meeting 
 
August 26, 2015                Special Planning and Zoning Meeting/ Public Hearing 
  
October 5, 2015   Town Council Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
 
October 19, 2015   Town Council and 2nd Reading/Action 
 
All meetings, except for the neighborhood meeting, will be held at Town Hall Council 
Chambers, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132.  The neighborhood 
meeting was held at the Community Development Department Office located at 224 
West 20th Street on August 26, 2015. 
 
 
 
 



 
Subject: Ordinance No.          1st Street Zone Change                          Meeting Date: October 19, 2015 
Page 5 of 5 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Approval of this zone change will allow the Buccellato brothers to proceed with the 
development of their proposed restaurant, which will have a positive impact on the 
Town. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission found that the zone change for (PZ-15-50-ZC) is 
in compliance with the Town’s 2020 General Plan and is in the interest of general 
welfare, health and safety of the public. The Planning and Zoning Commission has 
forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation on this zone change to the Mayor 
and Town Council, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development of the subject site, as described in Exhibit A attached, shall be 
in conformance to any applicable Town Codes and Ordinances. 
 

2. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 
Proposition 207 [A.R.S. § 12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 
 

3. Any additional conditions deemed necessary by the Town Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 640-15 
Application Materials 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 



 
ORDINANCE NO.  640-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A ZONE CHANGE ON .36 ACRES, FROM 
NEIGHBORHOOD MULTIPLE FAMILY ZONING DISTRICT (R-2) TO 
HIGHWAY BUSINESS COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT (B-2) (APN 
200-47-001B). 

 
WHEREAS, a request to change the existing zoning on the subject property from 

Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District (R-2) to Highway Business Commercial 
Zoning District (B-2) has been proposed and a public hearing has been held by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has found the zone change is 

in conformance with the 2020 Town’s General Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has forwarded the Mayor and 

Council of the Town of Florence a favorable recommendation for the Zone Change, 
subject to certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, said proposal has been considered by the Mayor and Council of the 

Town of Florence and the recommended zone change has been found to be 
appropriate and further found to promote the health, safety and welfare of the residents 
of the Town and its orderly growth. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, as follows: 
 
The Zoning Map of Florence, Arizona, is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
classification of the parcel of land depicted on Exhibit A, attached hereto, from 
Neighborhood Multi-Family Zoning District (R-2) to Highway Business Commercial 
Zoning District (B-2), subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development of the subject site, as described in Exhibit A attached, shall be 
in conformance to any applicable Town Codes and Ordinances. 

 
2. Property owners agree to waive claims for diminution in value pursuant to 

Proposition 207 [A.R.S. §12-1134] pursuant to the waivers attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 19th day of October 2015. 

      ______________________________  
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

ATTEST:                                             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________ ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 











E 1st St

N 
Pi

na
l P

ar
kw

ay
 A

ve

N 
Ph

oe
ni

x 
St

200-46-0060

200-47-001D200-47-001B

200-47-0210200-47-0170

20
0-

47
-0

03
0

20
0-

47
-0

01
E

200-47-0180

20
0-

47
-0

22
0

200-47-019A

20
0-

47
-0

04
0

20
0-

47
-0

19
B

200-47-0200

Exhibit A:
Parcel 200-47-001B

Zone Change

This map is created for reference
purposes only and is to be used at
your own risk.  The Town of
Florence makes no warranty as to
the accuracy or completeness of
the information contained in this
map and assumes no liability for
any errors or omissions contained
therein, nor for any direct, indirect,
or consequential damages which
may be caused by its use. It is the
user's responsibility to verify all
information conatined herein.
5/5/2015          2015-68

0 30 60Feet ´

Site Location
Town Limits

Parcel Lines

Legal Description
All of  Block 2, of  TOWNSITE OF
FLORENCE, according to the plat
recorded in the office of  the County
Recorder of  Pinal Count, Arizona,
recorded in Book 1 of  Maps, Page 1.





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9a. 

MEETING DATE:  October 19, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Task Orders No. 7, 9 and 10 with  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  
Subject: Approval of Task Orders No. 7, 9 & 10 with Water Works Engineers         Meeting date: October 19, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Task Order Nos. 7, 9 and 10 with Water Works Engineers for design 
of upgrades to the booster pump station, northern area pressure zones within Florence 
Gardens and replacement of the Booster Pumps at Well No. 5 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Water Works Engineers has a Professional Service Agreement, authorized by Council, 
for Professional Engineering services. Water Works Engineers would provide 
engineering services to the Public Works Department for the following projects: 
 
Task Order No. 7 
The two booster pumps (pictures attached) at Well No. 5 have deteriorated to a point 
where one pump is not functioning while the other pump is operating at a maximum of 
60% capacity. Replacement of these pumps is essential to a total operating water 
distribution system. 
In addition, the Transmission Main Project from Well No. 4 to Well No. 5 was curtailed 
at the entrance to Well No. 5 site; hence, the main is capped and does not serve as a 
crucial backup water supply to the water tanks at Well No. 5.  Miscellaneous site piping 
improvements will allow proper connections to the existing Well No. 5 tank site 
distribution system as well as the sand separator.  Further connection and upsizing of 
the distribution system from Well No. 5 will allow installation of a properly sized water 
main to both Main Street and Adamsville Road for water demands and fire flow. 

                   Water Works Engineers for the North Tank  
                   Booster Pump Station, northern area pressure  
                   zones in Florence Gardens and replacement of  
                   the booster pumps at Well No. 5. 

 2nd Reading 
 Other 



Subject: Approval of Task Orders No. 7, 9 & 10 with Water Works Engineers         Meeting date: October 19, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Site improvements also will include replacement of the sand separator, which is 28 
years old, and a ground grid for a lightning protection system for the entire site, which 
was recently and previously struck by lightning. 
Task Order No. 7 Scope 

a. Design of two larger sized pumps 
b. Piping header system modification of the pump suction and discharge 

headers. 
c. Modify yard piping and fill connections to existing tank. 
d. Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) 
e. Replacement of Sand Separator 
f. Lightning protection system with ground grid. 

Task Orders No. 9 & 10 

Installation of the 560,000 gallon tank at the North Tank Reservoir and Booster Pump 
Project only addressed the flow demands of water usage and fire and not the pressure. 
The Design Report for this installation clearly indicated the need for:  a) eight inch water 
line loop, and b) Pressure Relief Valve (PRV) to address the two pressure zones (north 
and south of Arizona Boulevard).  These installations were not adhered to as the Project 
Manager advised the Engineer that others would address these issues. 
The resultant installation of the volutes and impellers within the existing booster pumps 
will increase the pressure from the booster pumps and the looped water line system will 
address the “trouble spots” in the existing water distribution system during normal 
operations resolving low pressure and high loss head issues. 
Based on the design report, installation of Pressure Relief Valves and a new eight inch 
water line from the North Tank distribution system just north of Arizona Boulevard will 
resolve all the issues in the area north of Arizona Boulevard.  Immediate low pressure 
issues would be resolved with the upgrading of the existing booster pump by installation 
of volutes to the discharge port of the pumps. 
The area below Arizona Boulevard will be evaluated based upon the existing condition 
of small diameter pipes in the area consisting of two inch, four inch, and six inch sizes. 
Thus, the water line distribution system in this area will also require a loop system, 
upsizing of additional water lines and strategic placement of fire hydrants within 
Florence Gardens area. 
Task Order No. 9 Scope 

a. Upgrading two booster pumps with higher pressure volutes (frame/motors to 
remain). 

b. Miscellaneous yard piping for new pumps. 
c. North Tank site lightning protection system. 
d. Hydraulic modelling of designed service area to include PRV stations. 
 



Subject: Approval of Task Orders No. 7, 9 & 10 with Water Works Engineers         Meeting date: October 19, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Task Order No. 10 Scope 
a. Design of approximately 1,200 lineal feet of eight inch water line along 

Pennsylvania alignment west to Washington and North Tank site. 
 

Water Works Engineers will complete Task Orders No. 7, 9 and 10, pursuant to the 
Professional Services Agreement, between the Town of Florence and Water Works 
Engineers, dated October 7, 2013.  The fee for this task order is $261,575. 
 

1. Task Order No 7  $133,500 
2. Task Order No 9  $  90,575 
3. Task Order No. 10 $  37,500 

     Total: $261,575 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is $2,130,000 in the Water Fund Carryover Contingency Line Item 051-581-507 
and $1,074,200 in the Capital Projects Placeholder Line Item 051-581-598 available in 
the current Fiscal Year 2015/2016 budget for this essential work to be performed. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Task Order Nos. 7, 9 and 10 with Water Works 
Engineers. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Pictures of Boosters at Well No. 5 
Task Order No. 7 
Task Order No. 9 
Task Order No. 10 









1 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 

Task Order No. 7 

Well 5 Booster Station Upgrades 

Modeling, Design, Bidding, Programming/Integration and Construction Administration 

Services 

 
This Task Order No. 7 is issued by THE TOWN OF FLORENCE and accepted by WATER 
WORKS ENGINEERS, LLC pursuant to the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 
contained in the Agreement between the above named parties dated the 9th day of July 2015. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Water Works Engineers will provide engineering services for the Town of Florence Utility 
Department for water system modeling, design, bidding, programming/integration and 
construction administration for the Well 5 Booster Station.   
 
This scope of work will include completion of the water system modeling, design, permitting, 
programming/integration, bidding and assistance during construction. 
 
The project will include the following elements: 

 Replacement of the existing pumps (2) with larger sized pumps (estimated at 75HP), 
 Limited replacement of the pump suction and discharge headers to facilitate construction 
 Correct current deficiencies within site yard piping and design tank fill connection. 
 New soft-starters (non-VFD) 
 Instrumentation, programming and controls to interface with the Town SCADA system 
 Miscellaneous site piping improvements to connect to the existing transmission main 

and sand separator drain 
 Design removal and replacement of existing sand separator 
 Performance specification and grounding for lightning protection system 

Water Works Engineers scope of work includes the following tasks: 
 

Task Series 1000 Project Management 
Task Series 2000 Design and Bidding Phase 
Task 2100 Water System Modeling 
Task 2200 Complete Design 
Task 2300 ADEQ Permitting 
Task 2400 Develop Front End Documents 
Task 2500 Design Review Meetings 
Task 2600 Attend Pre-Bid Meeting 
Task 2700 Answer Questions and Develop Addenda 
Task 2800 Develop Conformed Documents 
Task Series 3000 Engineering Services During Construction 
Task 3100 Engineering Support (RFIs/RFCs) 
Task 3200 Shop Drawings Reviews 
Task 3300 Site Visits 
Task 3400 As-Builts and Permitting 
Task Series 4000 Field Services 
Task 4100 Inspections 
Task 4200 Coordination w Contractor/Progress Meetings 



2 

 

Task 4300  Issue Resolutions 
 Specialty Inspection 
Task Series 5000 Startup and Commissioning 
Task Series 6000 Programming and Integration (Ripple Ind) 

 

The fee associated with the tasks is as follows: 

Well 5 Booster Station Upgrades 

Task Series 1000 – Project Management $3,000

Task Series 2000 

Water System Modeling $7,500

Engineering / Design $57,000

Permitting (ADEQ and TOF) $5,000

Bidding $5,000

Task Series 3000 – Engineering Support During 
Construction 

$20,000

Task Series 4000 – Field Services (Special 
Inspections and as requested site visits) 

$9,000

Task Series 5000 – Startup and Commissioning $7,000

Task Series 6000 – Programming and 
Integration (Ripple Ind) 

$20,000

Total: $133,500

 
SCHEDULE 
 
Time of performance for services for completion of design and bidding for project is Fiscal Year 
2015 – 2016. Construction will occur in Fiscal Year 2015 – 2016. 
 
PAYMENT 
 
The payment terms will be in compliance with the Master Agreement between the Owner and 
Engineer. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, duly authorized representatives of the parties have executed this 
Task Order with the effective date of October ____, 2015. 
 
Town of Florence     Water Works Engineers, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ By: ___________________________ 
      Wayne Costa, Utilities Director           Date        John Mata, Principal            Date 



1 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 

Task Order No. 9 

North Tank Booster Pump Station 

Design, Bidding, Programming/Integration and Construction Administration Services 

 
This Task Order No. 9 is issued by THE TOWN OF FLORENCE and accepted by WATER 
WORKS ENGINEERS, LLC pursuant to the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 
contained in the Agreement between the above named parties dated the 9th day of July 2015. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Water Works Engineers will provide engineering services for the Town of Florence Utility 
Department for booster pump station modifications design, bidding, programming/integration 
and construction administration for the North Tank Booster Pump Station.   
 
This scope of work will include completion of the water system design, permitting, 
programming/integration, bidding and assistance during construction. 
 
The project will include the following elements: 

 Replacement of existing volutes (2) with higher pressure volutes 
o Same frame and motor to remain 

 Programming and controls to interface with the Town SCADA system 
 Miscellaneous site piping improvements to connect the new pumps with existing headers 
 Performance specifications for lightning protection system 
 Hydraulic modeling for pressure zones within North Florence service area and location, 

sizing and design of PRV station (configuration to be determined) 
o No power or communication connection is required at the PRV site 

Water Works Engineers scope of work includes the following tasks: 
 Task Series 1000 Project Management 

Task Series 2000 Design and Bidding Phase 
Task 2100 Complete Design 
Task 2200 Hydraulic Modeling 
Task 2300 Permitting 
Task 2400 Develop Front End Documents 
Task 2500 Design Review Meetings 
Task 2600 Attend Pre-Bid Meeting 
Task 2700 Answer Questions and Develop Addenda 
Task Series 3000 Engineering Services During Construction 
Task 3100 Engineering Support (RFIs/RFCs) 
Task 3200 Shop Drawings Reviews 
Task 3300 Site Visits 
Task 3400 As-Builts and Permitting 
Task Series 4000 Field Services 
Task 4100 Inspections 
Task 4200 Coordination w Contractor/Progress Meetings 
Task 4300  Issue Resolutions 
Task 4400 Specialty Inspection 
Task Series 5000 Startup and Commissioning 
Task Series 6000 Programming and Integration (Ripple Ind) 



2 

 

The fee associated with the tasks is as follows: 

North Tank Booster Station Upgrades 

Task Series 1000 – Project Management $2,000

Task Series 2000 

Hydraulic Modeling $10,000

Engineering / Design $22,000

Permitting (ADEQ and TOF) $5,000

Bidding $3,000

Task Series 3000 – Engineering Support During 
Construction 

$8,000

Task Series 4000 – Field Services (Special 
Inspections and as requested site visits) 

$7,500

Task Series 5000 – Startup and Commissioning $7,500

Task Series 6000 – Programming and 
Integration (Ripple Ind) 

$25,575

Total: $90,575

 

SCHEDULE 
 
Time of performance for services for completion of design and bidding for project is Fiscal Year 
2015 – 2016. Construction will occur in Fiscal Year 2015 – 2016. 
 
PAYMENT 
 
The payment terms will be in compliance with the Master Agreement between the Owner and 
Engineer. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, duly authorized representatives of the parties have executed this 
Task Order with the effective date of October ____, 2015. 
 
 
 
Town of Florence     Water Works Engineers, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ By: ___________________________ 
      Wayne Costa, Utilities Director           Date        John Mata, Principal            Date 
 



1 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 

Task Order No. 10 

Florence North 

8-inch Waterline Extension from Pennsylvania to North Tank Site 

 
This Task Order No. 10 is issued by THE TOWN OF FLORENCE and accepted by WATER 
WORKS ENGINEERS, LLC pursuant to the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 
contained in the Agreement between the above named parties dated the 9th day of July 2015. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Water Works Engineers will provide engineering services for the Town of Florence Utility 
Department for booster pump station modifications design, bidding, programming/integration 
and construction administration for the North Tank Booster Pump Station.   
 
This scope of work will include completion of the water system modeling, design, permitting, 
bidding and assistance during construction. 
 
The project will include the following elements: 

 Survey and design of approximately 1,200lft of 8-inch waterline in Florence Gardens 
o Pennsylvania west to Washington and connecting into North Tank Site Pump 

Station Discharge. 
 Hydraulic modeling for pressure zones within North Florence service area and location 

of isolation valves 
o If existing valves are not functioning or available, Insert-a-Valves will be designed 

 Town to provide available asbuilts and secure all right-of-way. 

Water Works Engineers scope of work includes the following tasks: 
 

 

 

Task Series 1000 Project Management 
Task Series 2000 Design and Bidding Phase 
Task 2100 Complete Design 
Task 2200 Hydraulic Modeling 
Task 2300 Permitting 
Task 2400 Develop Front End Documents 
Task 2500 Design Review Meetings 
Task 2600 Attend Pre-Bid Meeting 
Task 2700 Answer Questions and Develop Addenda 
Task Series 3000 Engineering Services During Construction 
Task 3100 Engineering Support (RFIs/RFCs) 
Task 3200 Shop Drawing Reviews 
Task 3300 Site Visits 
Task 3400 As-Builts and Permitting 
Task Series 4000 Field Services 
Task 4100 Inspections 
Task 4200 Coordination w Contractor/Progress Meetings 
Task 4300  Issue Resolutions 
Task 4400 Specialty Inspection 



2 

 

The fee associated with the tasks is as follows: 

Florence North 8-inch Waterline Extension 

Task Series 1000 – Project Management $1,500

Task Series 2000 

Hydraulic Modeling $5,000

Engineering / Design $15,000

Surveying $3,500

Permitting (ADEQ and TOF) $3,000

Bidding $2,000

Task Series 3000 – Engineering Support During 
Construction 

$5,000

Task Series 4000 – Field Services (Special 
Inspections and as requested site visits) 

$2,500

Total: $37,500

 

SCHEDULE 
 
Time of performance for services for completion of design and bidding for project is Fiscal Year 
2015 – 2016. Construction will occur in Fiscal Year 2015 – 2016. 
 
PAYMENT 
 
The payment terms will be in compliance with the Master Agreement between the Owner and 
Engineer. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, duly authorized representatives of the parties have executed this 
Task Order with the effective date of October ____, 2015. 
 
 
 
Town of Florence     Water Works Engineers, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ By: ___________________________ 
      Wayne Costa, Utilities Director           Date        John Mata, Principal            Date 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Mayor and Town Council  
From:  Lisa Garcia, Interim Town Manager 
Copy:  Department Heads 
Date:  October 19, 2015 

Re:  Bi-Weekly Update  

 
Arts and Culture Commission   
The Arts and Culture Commission has a little more work to do on the Public Art Guidelines 
and should be able to review the final draft in late October.  The commission continues to 
work on their Annual Project Plan, which should be finalized in November.  The commission 
1 
 

had a table at the Library/Community Center grand opening on October 3rd to raise 
awareness of the arts in Florence and survey the public for additional information that can 
be added to the arts and culture inventory. 
 
Budget Calendar  
A modified budget calendar is attached. 
 
Business Licenses 
Staff is reviewing the business license structure and seeking out best practices from other 
communities to streamline the process and make the program business-friendly. 
 
Community Facilities District Sessions 
Community Facilities District (CFD) Work Session:  A work session has been scheduled at 
the Sun City Ballroom on October 26, 2015 (from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.) to share 
Community Facilities District information with the residents.  There will be a question and 
answer period after each session to address public questions. 
 
Dates to Remember 
October 19, 2015  Regular Town Council Meeting with Executive Session to 

review Town Manager applications. 
October 26, 2015  CFD Work Session Anthem Sun City from 6:00 pm to 8:00 pm 
November 2, 2015  Regular Council Meeting 
November 9, 2015  CIP Meeting for Highway User Revenue Fund, Water,                
                                          and Wastewater   
November 16. 2015  Regular Council Meeting 
December 7, 2015  Regular Council Meeting 
December 14, 2015  Regular Council Meeting 
 
Florence Farmers Market   
The farmers market opened on Saturday, October 3rd at Arriola Square.  The vendor 
application and regulations were finalized last week and are available at Town Hall and the 
Florence Visitors Center.  Staff also can email the document to vendors.  Ms. Debbie Keirn, 
a long-time market vendor, has volunteered to contact the list of potential vendors that has 
been assembled over the past several months.  A few vendors will not participate until the 



2 
 

weather cools because their products are heat sensitive and others are winter residents 
who will join the market when they return to Florence.  The goal is to have 10 to 12 
vendors.  Staff is working on publicity and logistics for the market.  
 
Request for Proposals – Territory Square Development Project 
Staff is preparing the draft Request for Proposals (RFP) soliciting proposals from qualified 
entities to acquire (through lease or purchase) and develop approximately ten acres, more 
or less (or a portion thereof) of undeveloped land north of the Library/Community Center.  
The goal is to encourage a development project or projects that is/are compatible with the 
Town of Florence 2020 Florence General Plan, the Florence Downtown Redevelopment 
Plan, the Territory Square Zoning District and other applicable adopted policies, plans and 
codes.  The preferred project will be mixed-use and would ideally include a combination of 
the following: street level specialty retail, restaurants, residential, professional offices and/or 
recreational facilities. 
 
Silver King Market Place  
Three tenants currently lease space in the Silver King Marketplace.  The separate water 
and electric meters are now operational in each of the suites.  There have been no inquiries 
about leasing Suite 202 in the past several months.  
 
 
 



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
Orig Date Modified Date

Ö 8/7/2015 √ Draft Calendar Complete - Dates may change.  All dates with ARS 
notice must be completed by the date listed

B 8/12/2015 √ Budget Meeting to Review Calendar

B
8/17/2015 √ Calendar Presented to Council at Manager's Report of Council 

Meeting

B 8/21/2015 √ CIP Meeting with Public Works  -  

B 8/25/2015 √ First CIP meeting with staff

B 9/9/2015 √ Second CIP Meeting with Staff

B 9/11/2015 √ Email to review budget forms

B 9/16/2015 √ Budget Committee Meeting for CIP

B 9/23/2015 √ Public Forum on CIP - Input from Citizens  9 a.m. and 6 p.m.

B 9/28/2015 10/5/2015 √ Council CIP Meeting

B 10/5/2015 10/13/2015 √ Budgets to Department Heads

B 10/22/2015 Budget Committee meeting on CIP Cont. 

B 10/16/2015 10/27/2015 Budget Returned  by Department Heads

B 10/21/2015 11/9/2015 Budget Committee Meetings (two weeks as Necessary)

B
11/2/2015 Work Session with Council Budget update/Special Election 

Information

11/17/2015 Council CIP Meeting for HURF, Water, Wastewater

B 11/18/2015 Budget Committee Meeting 

SE 12/3/2015 Ad to Paper on Public Hearing for Special Election

SE 12/10/2015 Publish  Public Hearing Notice on purposed action including amount 
and purpose

B 12/16/2015 Budget Committee Meeting

SE 12/17/2015 Publish Public Hearing Notice on purposed action including amount 
and purpose

SE 12/21/2015 1st Public Hearing -  on purposed action Special Election

SE 12/21/2015 10/19/2015 IGA with County for Election Services

SE 12/21/2015 Resolution - All Mail Ballot Election May 2016

SE 12/31/2015 Publish PH Notice on purposed action including amount and purpose

SE 1/4/2016 2nd Public Hearing - Special Election purposed action

SE 1/4/2016 Convene into a Special Meeting to Vote on Expenditure Limit Amount

SE 1/4/2016 Call of Special Election 

SE 1/7/2016 Notice of Vote on Expenditure Limitation to paper (include amount 
and purpose)

B= Budget, SE = Special Election , P/G  Primary General Election 

1



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
SE 1/14/2016 Notice of Expenditure Limitation Vote in paper

B 1/20/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

SE 1/31/2016 Call of Election to Florence Reminder

SE 2/1/2016 Require all Political Committee to file Jan 31 Campaign finance 
reports

B 2/1/2016 Budget Update to Council (Work Session) Budget Issues and 
Priorities

B 2/1/2016 Town to receive estimated state-imposed expenditure limitation for 
coming year

SE 2/4/2016 First Publication of Call of Election 1 of 2

B 2/9/2016  Receive estimated Total Net Assessed Valuation from Assessor and 
property tax levy limit worksheet

42-17052 on or before 2/10

SE 2/11/2016  Second Publication of Call of Election 2 of 2

B 2/12/2016  Make property values available for public inspection 42-17055 on or before 2/15

B 2/17/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

B 2/20/2016  Notify PTOC if Disagree with Ptax levy limit 42-17054 within 10 days of receipt

SE 2/25/2016  Send publication of Argument for or against Special Election to 
Paper 

SE 3/2/2016  Presentation of information on vote to exceed state-imposed 
limitation to Council

SE 3/3/2016 AD for Arguments in paper 1 of 2

B 3/2/2016  Presentation of information on vote to exceed state-imposed 
limitation to employees

B 3/16/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

SE 3/17/2016 AD for Arguments in paper 2 of 2

P/G 3/17/2016 Ad to Newspaper on Public Hearing for Home Rule Option (primary)  

P/G 3/24/2016 Publish first notice of public hearing for Home Rule Option (primary) 

SE/P Mar/Apr  Presentation of information on vote to exceed state-imposed 
limitation to citizen groups

P/G 3/24/2016 Publish Notice of Town accepting Arguments for or against the 
Home Rule Option (publish  again on 3/30/2016)

P/G 3/30/2016 Publish second notice of public hearing for Home Rule Option 
(primary)

B 4/1/2016 Town receives actual state imposed expenditure limitation numbers

P/G 4/4/2016 Hold first public hearing on Home Rule option

SE 4/15/2016 Post Notice of Sample Ballots Available

SE 4/18/2016 County Voter Registration Closes

SE 4/18/2016 Arguments for publicity pamphlets due

P/G 4/18/2016 Hold second public hearing on Home Rule Option

B 4/20/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

P/G 4/18/2016 Council adjourns to Special Meeting to vote on the proposed Home 
Rule Option

Adopt by Resolution 

P/G 4/21/2016 Send publication of record of vote to the newspaper  on Home Rule 
Option. Also include the amount of expenditure in excess of state 
imposed limitation and purpose for excess.

2



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
P/G 4/22/2016 Submit to Auditor General's Office required Information, including 

summary and detailed analyses 
Time starts when A/G receives

SE 4/22/2016 Send out Publicity Pamphlets

SE 4/25/2016 Send out Mail Ballots

P/G 4/30/2016  Post notice of intention to increase property tax on Town website 9-499.15 60 days before TNT public 
hearing

P/G 5/2/2016  Nomination paper packets must be ready for distribution 16-311 120 days before Primary 
Election

P/G 5/5/2016 Call of Election delivered to the Florence Reminder 

P/G 5/12/20016  Call of Election in Paper 1 of 2

SE 5/13/2016 Pre Election Campaign Report Due

P/G 5/16/2016 Resolution Calling Election 

SE 5/17/2016 Election Day

B 5/18/2016 Budget Committee Meeting

P/G 5/19/2016 Call of Election in Paper 2 of 2

P/G 5/19/2016 Receive reviewed details and summary analyses and summary 
analysis worksheets from Auditor General 

P/G 5/28/2016 Receive Arguments for or against  Home Rule Option for Publicity 
Pamphlet

P/G 6/1/2016 Candidate filing deadline 16-311 90 days before primary election  

P/G 6/4/2016  Complete preparation of publicity pamphlet; send draft to Auditor 
General Office 

B 6/6/2016  Present Manager's recommended Annual Budget to Town Council 
(work session)

SE 6/6/216 Canvas the votes

B 6/13/2016 Recommended Annual Budget follow-up discussion (work session) - 
If necessary

SE 6/16/2016 Post Election Campaign Report Due

B 6/15/2016  Recommended Annual Budget follow-up discussion (work session) - 
If necessary

B 6/17/2016  Send ad to publish TNT notice (Exhibit H) with Gen Fund est. rev/exp 
(two dates as shown below) and issue press release

Friday before publishing TNT ad

B 6/20/2016  Adopt tentative budget 42-17101 on or before 3rd Monday in July

B 6/20/2016  Adopt alternative expenditure limitation (not required, citizen vote on 
this at the Special Election)

Art. IX, §20(9) not applicable this year; Home 
Rule election failed 8/2014

B 6/20/2016  First reading of property tax levy ordinance (TOF/CFDs) meeting before 2nd reading

P/G 6/20/2016 IGA for Election Services with Pinal County 16-172

B 6/23/2016 Publish 1st TNT notice 42-17107 between 14 and 20 days before 
TNT hearing

B 6/24/2016 Send ad to publish tentative budget, etc. for two consecutive weeks Friday before 1st publication

B 6/24/2016 Post tentative budget on Town Web site for 60 months 42-17103 no later than 7 days following 
initial presentation to Council

P/G 6/27/2016 Send Publicity Pamphlet to the Printer

B 6/30/2016 Publish 2nd TNT notice 42-17107 between 7 and 10 days before 
TNT hearing

P/G 6/30/2016 Publish adopted tentative budget, notice of hearing, library/website 
addresses

42-17103 after tentative budget adopted, 
2x

P/G 6/30/2016 Campaign Finance Reports due 

3



Town of Florence 

2015/2016 Calendar of Events

Date Ö Task A.R.S Comments
B 7/1/2016  Submit information of involuntary tort judgments and appropriate 

documentation to PTOC for consideration
A.A.C. 15-12-20 on or before 1st Monday in July

B 7/11/2016 Public hearing on TNT 42-17107 on or before final budget 
adoption

B 7/11/2016 Second reading of property tax levy ordinance (TOF/Cedes)

B 7/11/2016 Public hearing on final budget (TOF/Cedes) 42-17104 on or before 14th day before 
adopting property tax levy

B 7/11/2016 Convene special meeting to adopt final budget 42-17105 after final budget public hearing

B 7/11/2016 Adopt property tax levy ROLL CALL VOTE (TOF/Cedes) 42-17107 on or after TNT hearing date

B 7/14/2016 Send property tax levy to County 42-17151 levy must be adopted by county 
supervisors by 3rd Monday in 

B 7/14/2016 Mail copy of TNT, statement of its publication and result of Council 
roll call vote to PTOC

42-17151 3 days after final property tax 
levy

B 7/15/2016 Post final budget on Town Web site for 60 months 42-17103 no later than 7 days after final 
budget adoption

P/G 7/15/2016 Prepare and mail proof of sample ballot to candidates 16-461 45 days before election

P/G 7/21/2016 Receive nomination papers from write-in candidates. 16-312 Not later than 5:00 p.m., 40 days 
before election

B 7/21/2016 Must adopt Tentative Budget 42-17101 Last day to adopt by Law

P/G 7/22/2016 Mail Publicity Pamphlets

P/G 7/24/2016 Post notice that sample ballots are available in clerk's office 16-461 30 days before election - Post in 
all locations required by law 

P/G 7/31/2016 Distribute Early Ballots

P/G 8/1/2016 Voter Registration closes County 29 days before election

P/G 8/19/2016 Publish financial statement in local newspaper 9-246

P/G 8/26/2016 Political committees to file pre-primary campaign finance report 16-913

P/G 8/30/2016 PRIMARY ELECTION DAY 16-551

P/G 9/6/2016 $500 Threshold Termination Statements Due

P/G 9/19/2016  Canvas the votes 16-642

P/G 9/20/2016 Inform Auditor General  of Election Results

P/G 9/23/2016  Prepare and mail proof of sample ballot to candidates 16-461 45 days before election

P/G 9/23/2016  Receive nomination papers from write-in candidates. 16-312 Not later than 5:00 p.m., 40 days 
before election

P/G 9/29/2016  Political committees to file post primary campaign finance report 16-913 30 days after primary elections

P/G 10/7/2016  Post sample ballots 16-461 30 days before election - Post in 
all locations required by law 

P/G 10/10/2016  Voter registration closes County  29 days prior to election

P/G 11/4/2016  Political Committees to file post primary campaign finance report 16-913

P/G 11/8/2016 GENERAL ELECTION DAY 16-551

P/G 11/14-11/28 Canvas the votes 16-642 Not less then 6 days nor more 
than 20 after election.

P/G 12/8/2016 political committee statement of organization post election report 16-913 21 days after election

P/G 2/27/2017 political committee file termination statements $500 thresholds. 16-904

4


	October 19, 2015 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Groundwater Savings Agreement IGA
	7b. IGA for Election Services
	7c. Computer Donation
	7d. Billie Jo Garcia Resignation
	7e. Bruce Fenstermaker resignation
	7f. September 8, 2015 Minutes
	7f. September 14,  2015 Minutes

	7g i. July 22, 2015 HDAC Minutes
	7g i. September 16, 2015 HDAC Minutes
	7g ii. July 15, 2015 Library Minutes
	7g iii. August 27, 2015 PR Minutes


	8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	8a. Ordinance No. 640-15 1st Street ZC PZ 15-50 ZC

	9. NEW BUSINESS
	9a.. Task Order No 7, 9 and 10  Water Works Engineers

	10. Manager's Report



